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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Willoughby-Baylor House is a detached two-story townhouse located on a
corner lot. The threc bay facade has the front door located in the western-
most bay. The doorway was remodeled about thirty years after the house was
built, and thus is now embellished with very handsome Greek Revival trim.
The entrance is sheltered by a small porch supported on two pairs of Greek
Doric columns. Except for the doorway, the exterior retains most of its
original character, although the window sash is a restoration. The brick-
work 1$ laid in Flemish bond with rubbed brick used at the corners and
gavged brick jack arches over the windows on the front and west side. The
house is covered by a gable roof with a modillion cornice on both the front
and rear elevations. A small one-story serv1ce w1ng pro;ects from the rear
of the house immediately behind the hall,

The interior of the house consists of a parlor, dining room, and full length
side hall on the first floor; two bedrooms and a small study on the second
floor; and two additional bedrooms on the attic level. Much of the original
interior trim is intact including a fine walnut and poplar open string stair
that ascends in an open well to the attic. Also original are nearly all the
floors and a fine Adam style plaster cornice in the hall. About thirty
years after the house was built marble mantels were substituted for the
originals in the parlor and dining room, and Ionic columns were installed

to form a screen between the two rooms, Also a metal cornice was placed in
the parlor ceiling. All of these later features were removed in 1966

under the direction of the restoration architect, Finlay F., Ferguson, The
marble mantels were replaced with two mantels from an old house on Main
Street built in the same perlod as the Willoughby- Baylor House.

T . PR B | SRR - . . .
Archeologlcal 1nvest1gat10n undertaken in 1966 uncovered the foundatlons_
of a one-story kitchen-servants quarters which was nearly two-thirds’' the
size of the residence. This building was not rebuilt, but in the yard a

small brick capetaker's has: been’'erected,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The lot on which the Willoughby-Baylor House stands was included in the
original Crown grant to Col. Thomas Willoughby that became part of the
original Norfolk town in 1680. Norfolk's early Masonic Hall, which gave
its name to Freemason Street, stood on this site., The Masonic Hall was
destroyed during Dunmore's attack on Norfolk on January 1, 1776,

In 1794 William Willoughby purchased the lot from Dr, James Taylor, a
former mayor of Norfolk and Grand Master of the Masons who as Grand
Master held title to the property. It is assumed that William Willoughby
(1758-1800), a local merchant and building contractor, built the house
immediately after purchasing the lot. When Willoughby died without a will,
a chancery suit was filed by one of his two daughters, Margaret Willoughby
Sharp, and from this it is known that Willoughby owned 3 parcels of
property, all contiguous to one another on Freemason Street in the area of
the present house. This and a. few personal receipts found in the house are
the only evidence that Willoughby actually lived in the hause,

In 1845 the house was acquired by Dr. Baynham. Baylor,; whose heirs scld
it in 1890 to William M, Hannan, Altshul's, Inc., purchased it from
Hannan heirs in 1957 and sold it to the Norfolk Redevelomment Authority
in 1960 for $9100. 1In 1964 the Norfolk Historic Foundation purchased it
for $4700., It has taken six years to restore the house, and it is now
operated by the city as a house museum.

The house survives as a well-preserved example of a sophisticated medium-
size townhouse of Norfolk's post-Revolutionary era. Contrasting with

the nearly contemporary Myers House just down the street, the Willoughby-
Baylor House's architecture is conservative and backward looking, thus
illustrating the tastes of Norfolk's middle-income families of the - period.
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Virginia," The Chesopiean, A Journal of Atlantic Coast Archeology, Vol.
4, No.’3 (June 1966), 69-83,

. _GEOGRAPHICAL DATA _

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE CODRDINATLES (I LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COOROINATES
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY |0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LES5 THAN TEN ACRES
B = PR N
CORNER LATIYUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE s el LérbrTuoe
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds
NW ® ' " ° ' " 36° 50° 58 ° 76 °© 17 "' 069°F
NE -] N " a ’ n .
SE o » " o vy " : - o= e
SW 5] ] - o . ! [

APPRUOXIMATE ACREAGE GF NGMINA?‘ED F’F\‘OF‘ERT‘(

_Less_than _10_acres

ILIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR F'ROPEFITIES DVEHLAFF‘ING STATE OR COUNTV BOUNDARIES

STATE: CODE COUNTY R CODE
: :

STATE: CoDE COQUNTY: cCoDC

STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE

STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE

[T

-y

. FORM PREPARED BY

NAME AND TI1TLE:

L.
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OQRGANIZATICON DATE
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